4.3 Command Range: is command range affected by terrain? Do enemy units or reaction zones affect command range? 

DF- No. 

4.5.2 Corps Activation: in a division activation you have to roll on the command breakdown table if you exceed the activation rating. Do you carry out the same process if a division fails its roll? As part of a corps activation? 

DF- Yes.

Does a disordered unit become ordered just by paying the movement point cost? 

DF- Yes. Disorder is removed by changing formation, remember Disorder is not a morale state. But a unit may only change out of Disorder if in the proper terrain (so an infantry unit in woods could never leave Disorder).
I believe the diagram Figure D showing infantry as two hex skirmishers is wrong because the unit only has 4 strength points; according to 6.3.3 it needs to have 6 strength points to occupy two hexes. 

DF- Yes.
In 7.1 there is a wrong cross reference to 10.2 which is probably meant to be 10.1.1 and 10.1.2 

DF- 10.1.1 is correct. 

7.1 says that stacking units must be from same division and in same formation. It also says stacking restrictions are in effect at all time. So, a unit in column formation may not move through a line formation from the same division without disordering both. Is that correct? 

DF- Yes.
And, assuming stacking numbers are kept to, does it mean there is no effect if a line moves through a line and a column moves through a column (always assuming from same division)? 

DF- Yes.

Road movement - rules don't mention it but I assume I change facing to follow the road 'for free' while moving, but I have to pay a facing change when I move off the road? 

DF- Yes.
Changing formation - I assume when changing to face a vertex rather than a hexside (or vice versa), I have to face a vertex adjacent to the hexside I currently occupy (in other words, I can't face any vertex / hexside I like)? does the same apply to artillery limbering / unlimbering? 

DF- Yes.
Now some questions about cavalry charges (which occurred during my first reaction charge, but may have wider application): 

Reaction charges - 6.2.3 says "if the cavalry unit fails its reaction charge pre-melee morale check....", yet 8.4.2 (charge procedure) point 2 says, "No pre-melee morale check is required" Does this mean that there is a morale check for reaction charges but not for normal charges? 

DF- Correct. Note that Murat and Bessieres allow you to reaction charge for free. 

If an infantry unit has been reaction charged, does this end its movement for the activation, whether it suffers any adverse effects or not? 

DF- Yes. It's too busy fighting the cavalry to carry out its original intention. 

If I charge/assault with a multi-hex unit, and I am adjacent to both front and flank hexes of the defender, does this count as a flank attack (similarly if I'm adjacent to flank & rear, is this a rear attack)? 

DF- A good piece of errata clarification, thanks. If he has a choice, the attacker gets the most advantageous position. 

My defender got a modified result of 6 on the melee table, so they lose an SP, and lose a morale level, becoming shaken. Do I also retreat (the melee table implies so, but section 10.0 only

refers to unsteady or routed units retreating) ? 

DF- Yes. The Unsteady/Rout retreat would be in addition to whatever the table tells you to do. 

If a unit in square is called on to retreat, can it? If so, does it remain in square or become disordered? If it cannot, does it suffer any adverse effects (such as losing an SP)? 

DF- Good question. Yes, it retreats, but must change to disorder first. 

I have charged a unit in 3707 with a multi-hex cavalry unit in 3706&3807, forced a retreat, and must advance. There are four possibilities where my cavalry could end up: 3607&3707, 3707&3808, 3706&3707, or 3807&3707 - can I choose which hexes to advance into? 

DF- Attacker always chooses.
I'm setting up Austerlitz, scenario A15.5 Struggle on the Goldbach which is a two mapper (Maps C&D). 

The setup for the Allied 2nd Brigade/2nd Column is listed as w/i 2 hexes of hex B2150. Should I use hex D2101 as a substitute for this scenario? 

DF- Yes.
If a XX in strat. move mode is activated by LIM is its LIM removed from the pool when it leaves strat. move mode regardless of the circumstances? There seems to be three ways to lose strat. Move status: voluntarily (2nd last sentence of 5.2), due to enemy proximity (5.2.1 point 7 & 8), and "involuntarily" because some unit in the command didn't move its full MA (5.2.1 point 4). Only the last states that the LIM is removed. Is this intended or is its absence on the other clauses an oversight? 

DF- No, that's intended. The last point (5.2.1. point 4) is meant to prevent players from leaving their units in Strat Move but not moving them, thus keeping their LIM's in the Pool but not gaining fatigue. Strat Movement means you are moving towards a particular objective, not standing in place. Not that the statement "must move as far as possible" in 5.2.1 point 4 should be viewed liberally; a division that can't move its full MA because of terrain or overstacking is not punished by removing its LIM. A command that can move its full MA but only spends one MP is punished. 

When a XXX LIM is removed from the pool, can some or all of the XX LIMs replace it in the pool at that time, or can they only be added as a result of command change? 

DF- This is an important clarification that will appear in the errata. A Corps LIM represents all of its divisions; if the Corps LIM is removed voluntarily, some or all of its divisions may remain in the Pool. This decision must be made the instant the Corps LIM is removed. The Corps LIM and any division LIMs that are removed may only be added again through a command change. 

If a XX is activated by drawing its LIM from the pool, and the XX commander chooses a limited activation with no combat, does the XX still suffer fatigue? (I ask because my interpretation is that No-LIM limited activations that involve no combat don't suffer fatigue. Please correct me if I'm wrong...) 

DF- Yes it does. Having a LIM in the Pool means that you always gain a fatigue point (unless the only action you conduct is Strat Move) no matter what happens when you try to activate. Note that having a Corps LIM in the Pool means that all divisions of that Corps will gain fatigue under same guidelines. 

Can one roll for command change on turn one of a scenario? The first sentence of 4.2 implies not. 

DF- No. Another important clarification. The initial LIMs in the Pool represent the starting orders issued to the commanders just kicking into gear on Turn 1. 

Reinforcement LIM. This is placed in the pool at the beginning of any turn reinforcements arrive. The rules imply (in 14.4) but do not state that that LIM can continue to be added in successive turns in order to keep commands moving. To be clear: can the reinforcement LIM be added to the pool each turn after reinforcements arrive until there are no commands left with a strat. move marker? Or, since commands can move at the strat. move rate (2 x MA) in the No-LIM phase it doesn't matter? 

DF- The Reinforcement LIM stays in as long as any units still possess a Reinforcement Strategic Movement marker. That stays on reinforcements until they reach their objective (as listed in the scenario reinforcements) or have it removed under normal Strat Move guidelines. This represents units moving onto the map towards a specific objective; they will keep on moving until they reach that objective (or are bothered by the enemy) without prodding from the player. Once they reach the objective the Reinforcement Strat Move marker is removed and their LIM can only be added to the Pool using normal Command Change rules.
If I get a Stop result on command breakdown table, do I still incur fatigue? 

DF- Any time a division has its LIM in the Pool it gains fatigue, no matter what it actually does during the turn. Remember, fatigue represents more than just the boys getting tired. 

If I get a 'free' activation from the CMD Breakdown table (Reactivate or Enemy), does this incur fatigue? (If so, a command may well acquire 2 levels in a single turn) 

DF- No. A division that activates twice in a turn still only gains fatigue once. 

If a unit moves into a multi-hex cavalry's flank zone, can it wheel to change facing? 

DF- Yes. 

8.1.2 says I can only return fire once per activation - does this apply during melee also? (For example, I have been fired on and have returned fire during the Offensive Fire phase. Now I am the target of a Bayonet combat - can I fire at my attackers?) 

DF- No. You may only Return Fire once per enemy activation, so choose your moment carefully. 

Can more than one unit countercharge a charging cavalry unit? This comes into play when those multihex units charge into the reaction zone of several single-hex units. If more than one can countercharge (assuming all pass the required morale check), countercharging makes sense, otherwise it's at long odds. 

DF- No. Only one unit (or one stack of units) can countercharge. Realistically, distant units would never be able to coordinate their actions sufficiently to countercharge at the same time. Countercharging at long odds might make sense when it protects a vulnerable unit (like an unlimbered battery or forlorn infantry battalion) from being hammered. Also note that a countercharged cavalry unit is Blown at the end of the countercharge and very vulnerable to being charged itself during your activation. 

If cavalry that's the target of a charge doesn't desire to countercharge (for whatever reason), does it have to pass a defender's morale check? Or does it automatically stand? 

4.6.2 Limited activation units may not move adjacent to enemy units: even in a rear or flank hex? 

DF- Correct 

4.7 about REACTIVATE and ENEMY: is the activation of the closest division mandatory or not? What happens for instance if the closest division is using strategic movement? is recovering from fatigue or is at breakpoint (no LIM in the command pool)? has already been activated ? Has its artillery already fired with the Grande Battery LIM? 

DF- No, it's not mandatory. Think of it as a battlefield opportunity that must be let pass because your units aren't in good enough shape to exploit it. 

5.1.3 I guess that a friendly unit can change formation in an enemy front hex? 

6.2.2, 6.2.4 and more: about ENEMY ACTIVATION there is some limitations about Reaction fire, Return fire, once per enemy activation. But what happens if the Enemy activation is a corps activation? Is it once per activated division of the corps? and what happens if the Enemy activation is the independent LIM activation? Is it once per activated brigade in this case? 

6.2.2 To be sure: skirmisher may fire when a unit enters an adjacent hex, an infantry unit can not? 

DF- Correct. 

6.2.3 a multihex cavalry may move in an Enemy adjacent (even front) hex when it changes facing (flank zone reaction)? 

DF- Could you re-phrase this question? 

6.3.1, 6.3.2, 6.3.5, 6.3.6, 6.4.1: to be sure: no flank or reverse movement in an hex occupied only by an artillery unit? 

DF- Correct 

6.2.6 A unit using reverse movement may move in an Enemy adjacent (even front) hex? In an friendly occupied hex? 

6.5.1 I am not sure how one can change the facing of a multihex unit: for instance, in figure Q, with a multi hex cavalry in line in clear terrain: you pay 2 MP, put a in column marker on the unit, and then it right rear-flank-front hexes for instance become its new front hexes? 

6.5.6 What is the strength of a multihex unit in defense? 

DF- Could your rephrase this one, too? 

7.0 about STACKING what does it mean that the stacking restrictions are in effect during movement? Two units from different formations, an infantry and a cavalry unit or two units form the same division but with different formations may not pass through each over without be disordered? What happens with units using strategic movement? Is it considered as a formation for stacking purpose? 

8.2.1 2) and 8.3.1 2) the -1 modifier to the Pre-melee morale of the attacker: for any active stack, which is only adjacent to the defender? No need to have the defender in front hexes of the supporting stack? 

8.3.1 a defending stack may be assaulted only once per activation? 

DF- Correct 

6.2.3 and 8.4.2 3 - is it really necessary for Countercharge that the defending stack is non-Blown cavalry (as suggested by 8.4.2 3)? Or charging Enemy cavalry in a reaction zone may be countercharged regardless of the original target (as suggested by 6.2.3)? 

DF- The counter/reaction charging cavalry unit must not be Blown, since Blown cavalry can never charge. 

8.4.2 7) "then repeat step 5" I guess it is step 6?

6.2.3 talks about cavalry reaction with respect to infantry/artillery. What about other cavalry? I presume moving cavalry is subject to reaction charge just as moving infantry or artillery is. Is that correct? Is this implied or stated somewhere? 

DF- No. Cavalry may only charge in reaction to a cavalry charge, not cavalry movement. 

A cavalry unit failing a reaction charge morale check is disrupted. A countercharging cavalry which fails the check is not affected other than not being able to countercharge. Why is it more “dangerous” to reaction charge an infantry/artillery than to countercharge a charging cavalry? 

DF- My purpose here was to prevent a cavalry unit that fails to reaction charge from attempting to reaction charge anybody else, since a Disordered unit can't charge. The cavalry unit has failed to react to infantry/artillery moving nearby and may only move away if possible. 

Keeping with the charging cavalry theme, how exactly does a multi-hex cavalry unit charge? If it will end adjacent to more than one enemy infantry unit, are they all designated in the Declaration step? Yes, the rule says one charging stack designates one defending stack but all defenders in the charging unit’s frontal hexes must be attacked in the Melee step. Only the designated defender may attempt to change into square? What combat modifiers are used if one defender is in square and one isn’t?

DF- The charging multi-hex unit must melee against every unit in its frontal hexsides, an exception to the normal one hex vs. one hex rule. Any defending units that are in his frontal hexsides may attempt to form square. If one defender is in square but another isn't, use the modifier that most benefits the attacker. However the defending units in square still gain the benefit of square formation for morale checks. 

Again under 6.2.3 the last sentence states the reaction charging cavalry becomes the attacker (and can use charge bonuses). Does this attacker/defender role switch apply to Countercharging? Under 8.4.2, step 3) states the “defender” gets a charge bonus. Would this be the original charging cavalry (and if so should the bonus be a negative modifier?)? Or does the countercharging unit get the bonus? 

DF- Yes it applies to countercharging. Subtract the countercharging cavalry units charge bonus from the attacker's charge bonus; the resulting modifier, whether positive or negative, is the charge bonus drm. 

The melee table lists retreat as an “other effect’. Does retreat apply to units not unsteady or routed? If so, how far do they retreat? 

DF- An important piece of errata. The retreat applies to units not unsteady or routed and is equal in number of hexes to the number of morale levels gained by the melee loser. 

Tongue-in-cheek design question: Our introductory game lasted two turns before the Russian infantry was all routed. Markers were flying on and off units all the time. At what point are there too many markers on the map in a wargame? 

DF- When I say it is and not a moment sooner! 

If cavalry that's the target of a charge doesn't desire to countercharge (for whatever reason), does it have to pass a defender's morale check? Or does it automatically stand? 

DF- More errata. A cavalry unit that does not desire to countercharge must still conduct a defender pre-melee morale check.

5.1.3 I guess that a friendly unit can change formation in an Enemy front hex? 

DF- Yes, but that will trigger Reaction Fire. 

6.2.2, 6.2.4 and more: about ENEMY ACTIVATION there is some limitations about Reaction fire, Return fire, once per Enemy activation. But what happens if the Enemy activation is a corps activation? Is it once per activated division of the corps? And what happens if the Enemy activation is the independent LIM activation? Is it once per activated brigade in this case? 

DF- Once per activated division of a corps activation or per brigade in an Independent LIM activation. 

6.2.2 To be sure: skirmisher may fire when a unit enters an adjacent hex, an infantry unit can not? 

DF- Correct. 

6.2.3 a multihex cavalry may move in an Enemy adjacent (even front) hex when it changes facing (flank zone reaction)? 

DF- No. In that case it could not change facing as a flank zone reaction. 

6.3.1, 6.3.2, 6.3.5, 6.3.6, 6.4.1: to be sure: no flank or reverse movement in a hex occupied only by an artillery unit? 

DF- Correct 

6.2.6 A unit using reverse movement may move in an Enemy adjacent (even front) hex? In a friendly occupied hex? 

DF- No and No. 

6.5.1 I am not sure how one can change the facing of a multihex unit: for instance, in figure Q, with a multi hex cavalry in line in clear terrain: you pay 2 MP, put a in column marker on the unit, and then it right rear-flank-front hexes for instance become its new front hexes? 

DF- Yes 
7.0 about STACKING what does it mean that the stacking restrictions are in effect during movement? Two units from different formations, an infantry and a cavalry unit or two units form the same division but with different formations may not pass through each over without be disordered? What happens with units using strategic movement? Is it considered as a formation for stacking purpose? 

DF- Stacking rules are in effect at all times. Yes to the second question. Units in strategic movement are in column, but are not in a separate type of column formation. 

8.2.1 2 and 8.3.1 2 - the -1 modifier to the Pre-melee morale of the attacker: for any active stack, which is only adjacent to the defender? No need to have the defender in front hexes of the supporting stack? 

DF- A point needing clarification. Correct, the defender must be in the supporting units' front hexsides. 

8.3.1 a defending stack may be assaulted only once per activation? 

DF- Correct 
6.2.3 and 8.4.2 3 - Is it really necessary for Countercharge that the defending stack is non-Blown cavalry (as suggested by 8.4.2 3)? Or charging Enemy cavalry in a reaction zone may be countercharged regardless of the original target (as suggested by 6.2.3)? 

DF- The counter/reaction charging cavalry unit must not be Blown, since Blown cavalry can never charge. 

8.4.2 7) "then repeat step 5" I guess it is step 6? 

DF- Step 6 is correct.

Soult/Margaron: OOB says there should be an arty horse coy. I didn't see one in the counter mix. 

DF- Nope, Margaron doesn't get a battery. 

Miloradovich/Monakhin: OOB lists the Erherzog Johann Dragoons. Again, I didn't see it in the counters. 

DF- Another phantom unit that I had in the OOB but upon further review decided didn't warrant a counter in the game. 

Arty horse (or cav) batteries (or half batteries) are listed for the following formations, but the appropriate counters don't have the horse-head symbol: 

Murat/Nansouty Murat/D'Hautpol Liechtenstein cav batteries 1 & 2 (though these units do have the horse-head on the backs) Bagration 

DF- The above are all horse artillery batteries. These counters should be reprinted in C3I at some point.

 

